

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

One Hundredth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with
the Revised Statutes of 1954, Chapter 10, Section 27, Subsection VI.

KENNEBEC JOURNAL
AUGUSTA, MAINE
1961

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the One Hundredth Legislature

1961

distant from the place where the accident occurred, the employer shall provide transportation or reimburse the employee for reasonable mileage in traveling within the State to and from said hearing. The amount so allowed for such travel shall be determined by the commissioner or commission and awarded separately in the decree.'

Effective September 16, 1961

Chapter 393

AN ACT Redefining the Financial Responsibility of Children and Certain Relatives in Public Assistance.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 25, § 281, amended. The 4th paragraph of section 281 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'If the applicant is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such child or spouse ~~as provided above~~, then upon proof of his inability to do so the department shall ~~determine whether such inability to do so is real and genuine, and if it decides that it is real and genuine then the merits of his application shall be considered~~ obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and proceed to process the application. Any determination made under ~~the provisions of~~ this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the applicant under ~~the provisions of~~ section 284.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 25, § 283, sub-§ VI, repealed. Subsection VI of section 283 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is repealed, as follows:

'VI. Has no child or children residing in this State and able to support him;'

Sec. 3. R. S., c. 25, § 287, amended. The last paragraph of section 287 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as amended, is further amended to read as follows:

'If the recipient is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such child or spouse then upon proof of his inability to do so, the department shall ~~determine whether such inability to do so is real and genuine, and if it decides that it is real and genuine, then the merits of his case may be considered~~ obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and proceed to process the case. Any determination made under ~~the provisions of~~ this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the recipient under ~~the provisions of~~ section 284.'

Sec. 4. R. S., c. 25, § 290, amended. The first sentence of section 290 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is repealed, as follows:

'The department may recover from any child, children, or spouse of any beneficiary under the provisions of sections 276 to 297, who is able to support the said beneficiary but who fails to provide such support, in an action on the case for the amount expended by the department for said support.'

Sec. 5. R. S., c. 25, § 294, amended. Section 294 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 294. Liability of relatives to support. The husband, wife, father, mother, grandparent spouse, parents and child or grandchild of a recipient of or an applicant for public assistance of any nature from the State shall, if of sufficient ability, be responsible for the partial or total support of such persons. In determining the ability of such relative, his assets as well as his income shall be considered.

The commissioner Attorney General is authorized and empowered to shall bring proceedings in the name of the State of Maine in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel any person liable under the provisions of this section for support to contribute to the support of any person who is receiving, or who has applied and is otherwise eligible for recipient of public assistance, if after reasonable efforts on the part of the department to secure voluntary contributions have failed. The court shall have power to determine what shall be a fair and reasonable amount for such support and maintenance to be paid by the party adjudged liable, and to determine what amount shall be paid by such party defendant to the department as reimbursement for moneys already furnished to a recipient. If such person is receiving public assistance the court may order that such amount for such support and maintenance be paid to the commissioner for the use of such recipient. The action may be brought in the same manner and form as that provided by section 20 of chapter 94, except that such action may be commenced and acted upon by the court in vacation upon not less than 10 days' notice.

The action shall be brought as a petition for support upon not less than 7 days' notice. Upon failure to pay the support ordered, execution as in tort shall issue. The State shall pay the expense of commitment and support when the defendant is committed to jail on execution and he may be discharged in the same manner as provided by chapter 166, section 64.'

Sec. 6. R. S., c. 25, § 299, sub-§ VII, amended. Subsection VII of section 299 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'VII. Spouse. Has no spouse parents, adult child or children residing in this State and able to support him.'

Sec. 7. R. S., c. 25, § 303, amended. The 3rd paragraph of section 303 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'If the applicant is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such spouse, parents or child as above provided, then upon proof of his inability to do so the department shall determine whether such inability to do so is reasonable obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and if it decides that it is reasonable then the merits of his application may be considered and proceed to process the application. Any determination made under the provisions of this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the applicant under the provisions of section 307.'

Sec. 8. R. S., c. 25, § 304, amended. The last paragraph of section 304 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is amended to read as follows:

'Provided, however, if If the recipient is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such spouse, parents or child as above provided, then upon proof of

his inability to do so, the department shall ~~determine whether such inability to do so is reasonable and if it decides that it is reasonable then the merits of his case may be considered~~ obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and proceed to process the case. Any determination made under the provisions of this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the recipient under the provisions of section 307.'

Sec. 9. R. S., c. 25, § 308, amended. The first sentence of section 308 of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes is repealed as follows:

~~'The department may recover from any adult child or children the spouse or parents of any beneficiary under the provisions of sections 298 to 318, inclusive who is able to support the said beneficiary, but who fails to provide such support, in an action on the case for the amount expended by the department for the said support.'~~

Sec. 10. R. S., c. 25, § 319-E, amended. The last paragraph of section 319-E of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 30 of chapter 405 of the public laws of 1955, is amended to read as follows:

~~'If the applicant is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such spouse, parents or child as above provided, then upon proof of his inability to do so the department shall determine whether such inability to do so is reasonable obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and if it decides that it is reasonable, then the merits of his application may be considered and proceed to process the application. Any determination made under the provisions of this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the applicant under the provisions of section 319-G.'~~

Sec. 11. R. S., c. 25, § 319-F, sub-§ V, amended. Subsection V of section 319-F of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 30 of chapter 405 of the public laws of 1955, is amended to read as follows:

~~'V. Spouse. Has no spouse parents, adult child or children residing in this State and able to support him;'~~

Sec. 12. R. S., c. 25, § 319-K, amended. The last paragraph of section 319-K of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 30 of chapter 405 of the public laws of 1955, is amended to read as follows:

~~'Provided, however, if If the recipient is unable to obtain the sworn statement from such spouse, parents or child as above provided, then upon proof of his inability to do so, the department shall determine whether such inability to do so is reasonable and if it decides that it is reasonable then the merits of his case may be considered obtain such statement or the required information from any available source and proceed to process the case. Any determination made under the provisions of this section shall be subject to the right of appeal by the recipient under the provisions of section 319-G.'~~

Sec. 13. R. S., c. 25, § 319-M, amended. The first sentence of section 319-M of chapter 25 of the Revised Statutes, as enacted by section 30 of chapter 405 of the public laws of 1955, is repealed as follows:

~~'The department may recover from any adult child or children, spouse or parents of any beneficiary under the provisions of sections 319 A to 319-T,~~

PUBLIC LAWS, 1961

CHAP. 394

~~inclusive who is able to support the said beneficiary, but who fails to provide such support, in an action on the case for the amount expended by the department for the said support.'~~

Sec. 14. Appropriation. There is appropriated to the Department of Health and Welfare from the General Fund the sum of \$200,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963 to carry out the purposes of this act. The breakdown shall be as follows:

	1961-62	1962-63
Legislative Appropriation		
Welfare Administration		
Personal Services	— (20)	\$ 50,260
All Other	—	18,000
Capital	—	1,740
		<hr/>
		70,000
Old Age Assistance		
All Other	—	75,000
Aid to the Blind		
All Other	—	15,000
Aid to the Disabled		
All Other	—	40,000
		<hr/>
		\$200,000

Effective September 16, 1961

Chapter 394

AN ACT Creating an Administrative Code for State of Maine.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 20-A, additional. The Revised Statutes are amended by adding a new chapter 20-A, to read as follows:

‘Chapter 20-A.

Administrative Code.

Sec. 1. Definitions. For the purpose of this chapter:

I. Agency. “Agency” means the following state boards, commissions, departments or officers authorized by law to make rules or to adjudicate contested cases:

Board of Examiners of Funeral Directors and Embalmers.